INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
(“the Company™}, which comprisc the Balance sheet as al March 31 2019, the Statement of Prafit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
sigmficant accounting polictes and other explanatory information.

[ our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the informatien required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (**the
Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformily with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its profit including
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equily for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
{SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Ovr responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements® section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics® issued by the [nstitute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ogether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions ol the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have tulfilled our other
cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors s responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board of Tlirectors Reporl, but does not iaclude the Ind AS firancial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and-we-do-not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
inforination and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtaingd in_the auditor otherwvise appears_lo_be materially misstated.
[f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude hat there is a material misstalement of this other
mlormation, we are required 1o report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.




Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financiai Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters staled in section [34(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these [nd AS financial staiements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash Ilows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the [indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS} specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application ol appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

[n preparing the Ind AS financial slatements, manageiment is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue 4s a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the geing
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends lo liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Nnancial stalements as a whole
are free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists, Misstalements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if; individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS
Financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticisin throughout the audil. We also:
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[dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that-is-sufficient-and-appropriate-to-provide-a basis-forouropimion:- The risk of not-detecting 4
material misstatement resulting trom fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
wvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are-appropriate-in-the-circumstances.-Under section—H43(3)H}-ef-the-Aet:-we-are-also-responsible-for—

expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,




based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists related (o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s abifity to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncerlainty exists, we are required o draw allention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinian, Qur canclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company Lo cease to conrlinue as a going concer.

% Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the [nd AS financial statements represent the underlying lransactions and
evenfs in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identily during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought fo bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (*“the Order™), issved by the Central
Governmeni of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 43 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure |¥
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

d}

g

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of ourknowiedge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

[n our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examinaticn of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as.amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference 10 these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such
confrols, refer 10 our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this report;

According to the information and explanation given by the managenient, we veport that remuneration
of the Managing Director for the year ended March 31, 2019 is in excess of the limnits applicable
under section 197 of the Act, read with Schedule V thereto, by Rs 2.16 million. We are informed by




the management that it is in the process of recovering the excess amount from the director;

hy With respect 1o the other matters Lo be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given 1o us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financtal position in its Ind
AS financial statements — Refer Note 38 to the Ind AS financial statements;

i.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iti.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the [nvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

od0,
per Yogesh Midha . ?y_f- i
Partner o :JFZ
Membership Number: 94941 o I

Place of Signature: New Delhi -
Date: May 24,2019



Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Re: Vikas Publishing House Private Limited (‘the Company’)

(1

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii}

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assefs.

(b) All fixed assets were physical verified by the management in the current year in accordance
with the planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties, included i property, plant and equipment are held in the name ol the
Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of invenlory at reasenable interval during
the year and no material discrepancies noted on such verification. [nventories lying with third
parties have been confirmed by them on various dale and no material discrepancies were noticed
in respect of such confirmation.

According fo the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loan
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provision of clause iii(a), {b) and {c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

In ouwr opinion and according lo the information and explanation given (o us, there are no loan,
investment guarantess and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 10 76 of the Act
and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisicns of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained. the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under clause [48(1) of the Companies Act 2013, for the
product/services of the Company.

() Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees™ state insurance, incone-1ax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise. value added tax, goods and service lax, cess
and other slatutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities
though there has been a slight delay in a one case.

(b) According to the information and explanations given fo us, undisputed dues in respect of
provident fund, employees® stale insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom,
duty ol excise. value added tax. goods and service tax. cess and other statutory dues which were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payabie. are as follows:




|

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(x11}

Name of the | Nature of | Amount Period to Due Date Date of
statute the dues which amount pavment*
relates
Income Tax Act, | Income INR | AY 2017-18 | 30/09/2017 | Not yet paid
1961 Tax 33.51
million - ]

*No demand has been raised by Income Tax Departiment.

(¢ )} According 1o the information and explanation given to us, dues of income tax, sales-tax,
service tax/goods and service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have
not been deposited on account ol any dispute are as follows:

Forum where

Name of the | Nature of Amount Period to Due Date dispute is
statute the dues which pending
amount
relates
Income Tax Penalty INR (.88 AY 2018-19 May 07, Comimnissioner
Act, 1961 u/s million 2019 of Income Tax
271DA (Appeals)

I our opinion and according Lo the information and explanalions given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution or bank.
The Company does not have any dues to in respect of debenture holders or government.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilized the monies raised by way of tenn toans for the purposes for whicih they were

raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud / material fraud on the company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanation given by the management, we report that
remuneration of the Managing Director for the year ended March 31, 2019 is in excess of the limits
applicable under section 197 of the Act, read with Schedule V thereto, by Rs 2.16 million. We are
informed by the management that it is in the process of recovering the excess amount from the

director:

In our opinion, the Company is nol a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the order are not appticable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xitH——According-to-lhe-infornration-and-explanations giverr by -the mranagement transacions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the finrancial statements, as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)

According to the information and explanations given o us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheel, the company has not tnade any preferential allotment or privale placement of shares




or hully or partly convertlible debenturcs during the year under review and hence. reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to
in section {92 of Companies Act, 2013.

{xvi)  According o the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of Iadia Acit, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
1CAT Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 94941 oy

KRR

_ - -
(IR

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 24, 2019



ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF VIKAS PUBLISHING HOUSE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal {inancial controls over financial reporting of Vikas Publishing House Private
Limited (“the Company™} as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering Lhe essential
compenents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of [Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficieni conduct of ils business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its agsets, the prevention and detection of frauds and ervors, the accuracy and completeness ol the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference te these financial statements based on our audil, We ¢onducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reperting {the “Guidance Note™} and the
Standards on Auditing as specilied under section 143{1Q) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audil of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis ol India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and i€ such conirols operated effectively
in all material respects,

OQur audit involves performing procedures o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference o these financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal
fnancial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating efTectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to Faud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Refercnce to these Financial
Statemnents

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial stalements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of (inancial reporting and the
preparation of Tinancial stalemients for Sxternal pun_p_ogc_;?; in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial centrol over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly refllect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use, or disposition of
the company's assets thal could have a material effect on the financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of [nternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent Ihnftations of internal financial contrals over financial reporting with reference io these
financial statements, including the possibility of cellusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements fo [ulure periods
are subject 10 the risk thai the iniernal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
stalements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

[n our opinicn, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as a1t March 31, 2019, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria cstablished by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of [ntemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For §.R. Batlibot & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
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r Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 94941
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Place: New Delhi
Date: May 24, 2019



Vikas Pubfishiog House Private Lirlted
Batance sheet as ot 31 March 2049

CIN: U74899DL L9711 TCOOST66 ___{Rs. In million)
Napees Asat Az nt
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Assers
NEI-TIUrrens assees -
Property, plant and equipment 3 711.81 T724.69
Intangible assets
- Goodwill L 236 236
- Onhier inlangible assets 4 154.55 134.77
Capital work-in-progress - 1.95
Fnancisl assels
- Investimenis SA 70.60 70.00
- Logns 5C 11,40 014
~ Qiher financial assets 5E 292 3.06
Income tax assels (et} rin 2244 1.43
Dieferred fax asseis (pof) 8 - 098
Oiher non-curmenl assets 7 210 413
Teiat nos-carrent asseis 977,58 953.53
Current assets
lnvenlones & 486,69 408,14
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 3B 144919 1.567.18
- Loans s5C 23.60 2316
- Cash and cash equivalents D 202,56 112.35
- Quher (inancial assets SE 76,35 175
Other curieql assels 7 1113 4.6
Fotal eierent assels 2,249.57 212339
Total assets 322718 3,076.92
Equity and tinbjlitjes
Equity
Equity share capital 9 4.01 4.0
Other equity
- Relamed samings 1] 1.416.69 133922
- (rlier reserves 10 101.62 101.29
Totad equity i.522.32 £ ddi.52
Non-curreat Habitities
Finarcial Liabilities
- Bomrowings 11A 32378 447 95
Provigions 14 19.035 3.7
Delerted 1ax fiabilities (ret) g 2674 -
Total nox curreat Habilites 369,57 43212
Current liabilifies
Financial fiabilities
- Bomowings 1B 459,82 479,30
- Trade payables 12

Micr enterprizes and small enterprises (refer note 34) 2539 -

Other than micro enterprises and small enierprises 53948 45339
- Othet financial liabifities i3 21153 113.06
Provisions 14 33.35) 7213
Ciher current liabiditics 15 35.51 32,38
Total curreat Habilities 1,335,26 {,150.28
Total egquily and Habilities 3,227.15 3,076.52
5 v of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notos are-ai-inogml part-of the (imancinl stalments

As per our repart of gven date

For §.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
[CAI Firm Registration No. 101049 / E300004
Chanered Accountants

LY

g
For znd ar hehadf 41 the Board of Directors of
Vikas Publishing Hose Private Limited

- -@\ Midha

Parter
Membersiip No.: 94941

Place: New Pelln
Date: 24 May 2019

i g.\aw—‘-" G £

bu Gupta supia
Whole-Time Direcior
i 00054015 DIN: 00053988
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Vikas Pubtishing Heuse Privace Limited
Sratement of Proft and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN; I74809DL 197 11T CR05 766

{Rs, In nsillion}

Far the year endad

Fer the year ended

Notes 31 March 3019 31 March 2018
I Rewenug from Operalions 1 1.853.1¢ 204501
If Other Ingome 17 11.36 285
11 Total Income (1-HT} 1,564.46 1,047.96
IV Expenses
Cost of raw material consumed 18 366,16 435.49
Cost of traded goods sold 19 90.21 4278
Cost of printing naterisl consumed 20 130,26 126,86
{Increasejtdecrease in inventories of finished poods and work m progress 21 {71.38) (3941}
[Publication expenses 22 KIg ] 32570
Employee benelits expense 13 331.06 34022
Selling and distribution expenses bl 169,75 155,51
Finance ¢ost 25 125,15 122.35
Drepreciation and ainostisation expense 28 57.24 4028
Orher expenses » 173.63 12302
Total cxpenses 75320 1,683.50
Y Profit hefore iax (T1-EY} 11517 364.46
¥1 Tax expense: 48
Cuereni ax 2822 1216
Adjustment of taxes for earlier years £1.90% -
Delerred tax charge 2 .80 6.5
Tetal I2x experses 48.12 118.3
YIl Profie for the year (V-¥1) 63.08 246.15
YIil Other Comprebensive Income 28
~ [tems that will sot Be reclassified to profis oy loss
Re-measurement gains losses) on delined benelit plans 0.34 (5.65)
Tax inpacl on re-measurement (gain} loss on delined benefil plans (590 1.94
IX  Fatal Comprekensive Tncome for tee year (V11 + VTI1) 77.47 24).44
X Earniogs per equity share: 29
{!} Basic 1,570.78 6,132.17
(2) Diluted 1.570.78 0,132,117
5 ry of sicnificant af iing policies 2.1
The accompanying nioles are an integral pan of fhe linancial slatefnents.
As per our reporl of even date
For 5.R. Batlihoi & Associates LLP For and on bebpi? of the Board of Birectors of

ICAL Firm Regisiration Mo, 101049W / E300004
Chartered Accouniants

pir Yogesh Midha
Pariner
iembership No.: 94941

Place : New Delhi
] ki 1 A )

Yikas Pablishtn,

(.\

Savi
Whale-Time Directar
DIN: 00053938

| !’i}n:mshu CGupta
reetor

DEN: 0005401 5

ouse Private Limited




¥iltas Publlizhing House Private Limited
Cash flow statement for (he year ended 31 ¥March 2019
CIN: UTdS99DILITIPTCOISTES

(R, In million}

Tor the year endled
3) darch 2019

Tor the year ended
31 March 28

A, Cash Now from aperating activiics

Prolit beiore tax

Adjustment 10 weeoncile profiy hefore 1ax to net cash Aows:
Depreciation and amotlization
Criplove stovh ption expense
Asmount written back
Inlerest expense
Interest incoune
Property, plant and equipraent weitten oft
{Profit¥loss on sale of property, plapt and equipment
Amount written ot
Prgvision for bad & doubifirl debts

Ohperating profit before werking ¢apital changes

Adinstments for changes 1 worbing capitsl
Decrease! { eiase ) in traide reccivables
{Inerense) [ecrease in other non-current assets angd i dtler current assets
{Inctease ) décrease in loans & advanges
{Therease pdecrease m inveniordes
{Increase Wdegtease in olher finaneisl assets
Inerease Tdeervise) intrade pavables
Increaxe i other Anancial haklries
Increaseddecrease) i other cwrenl hatulities
Increase m long term provisiens

Cash generated ram/{used in) ppreations

Drireel wx pauid

Net eash generated lrom operation

B. Cash flew from jnvesiing activities
Purchase of propeity. plant and equipmend, capital advances and capital work in progoess
f1et of capital credier)
Proceeds (rom sale of property. plant aud equipnent
friberest received
Net eash psed in investing activitics

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceedi{ Repayiment Gir Jane-1emt Domowings net)
Proceedsd Repaymend) from shorl fenn bomowings (net)
[nterest paid
Mt cash from linanciog activities

{Vhos spave fras bogn intenttonal{y fufi hank)

1Lz 36446
57.24 JY 88
(33 2.02
{439} .
119403 114 34
13.63) 24n
a4 -
{03} 0.20
092 [.o7
3351 12,14
31409 547.66
§357 (695)
$53aT 0,07
£l 5.21
{TRA5 79,16
(o8 46} 30 48
166 07 {368 R6)
510 31,83
303 {8143
524 782
422.50 320.98
(85.97) (104 77
(A) 336.53 216,21
(6093} {0837}
008 402
3.63 2,40
(B) (57.22) (91,95}
031 27U
(39.48] (32 56
(156 13} {119 3
(3 (189.30) (124.16)




Vikas Publishing House Private Limiged
Cash flaw statemeat for the vear ended 31 Maech 2019

CfN: U74829DL1971 PTCO03766 {Rs. In million}
For Lke year eaded For the year ended
31 March 2039 31 March 2018
Net increase in cash & cash equivalents {AFB+C) 90.01 0.10
Cash and cash equivalents - at the beginning of 1he year 112.55 112.45
Cash and cash equivalents - at 1he end of the year 2056 112.55

Cemponcats of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in land 1.49 .10
Balance with banks on current accounts 136.09 90.FG
Cheques in hand 64 .98 21.69
Taotal Cash and cash equivalents {refer note 5D) 202,56 132.58

Non-cash investing and finarcirg transactien
Acquision of property, plant and equipment by means ol a finance lease - -

Nores.
I. Reconctliation of liakililigs arising Irom financing activities {R5. In millicn})
AL 8t Cash As al
31 March 2018 flaws 31 March 2019
Long tenn borrowings (including curment maturity) 478.9% &30 485.29
Short 1erm bormowings 479,30 {39.48) 439.82
958.28 {33.17) 025,11
Summary of significant accountieg policles 2.1
The agcompanying notes are an Inlegral pan of the financial statemenis.
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Vilkas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year endec 31 March, 2019
(Amounts in Rg Million, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate information

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited (the Company) is a private company doniciled in India and incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act. 1956. Vikas has head office in Delhi and corporate office at Noida, Uttar Pradesh
and warehouse at Sahibabad, Uttar Pradesh and has seven sales offices in the cities of Mumbai, Patna, Lucknow,
Ahmadabad, Bangalore, Chenrai and Kolkata. These are standalone financial statements and, accordingly, these Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) financial statements incorporate amounts and disclosures related to the Company only.

The Company is engaged in printing and publishing of college text books, school textbooks, and mass-marketl books and
provides job work services to its cuslomers.

Signtficant accounting policics

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
notified under the Companties {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

For all periads up to and including the year ended March 31, 2017 the Company prepared iis financial statements in
accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 and Companies {Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016 (Indian GAAP).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities
which have been measured at fair value.

i} Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments),
ii) Equity seftied employee share-based payment plan

The financial statements are presented in INR {Indian Rupees) and all values are rounded to the nearest Million (INR
1,000,000}, except when otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification
The Compauny presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An assel is classified as current when:
i.  Itis expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

ili.  TLis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv.  Cash or cash equivaient unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least tweive

monthg afierthe reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:
— e Mis-expected-to-be-settled-in-nonmal-operatingeycle — - — — =
if, It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii.  [tis due to be settled within twelve months afler the reporting period, or
iv.  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier (he reporting
period
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Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019
{Amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

The Company classifics all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-cuirent assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time beiween the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational carrency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Functional currency is the currency of the primary econemic environment in which an entity operates and is normally
the currency in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign cwrencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the date
the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or (ranslation of monetary items are recognised in the Statemenl of Profit
and Loss.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments and equity seltled employee share based payment plan at fair value
at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i. in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

ii. in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantaggous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participanis would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their econtomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-linancial asset takes inlo account a market participant's ability te generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company-uses-valuation-techniques-that- are-appropriate-in-the~circumstances-and-for-whieh-sufficient-data-are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inpots and wminimising the use of
uncbservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disciosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is sigrificant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
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Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Noies to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019
{Amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

Level 1 — Quoled (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets andl liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by rc-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significani assets, unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities,
such as valuation of unquoted investments and equity settled employee share based payment plan. Involvement of
external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company’s management. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company’s managemenl verifies the major inputs applied in the Jatest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documenis.

The Company's management, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also compares the ¢change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources (o determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has deterinined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Qther fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.

o Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumnptions (Note 2.20)

¢ Quantitative disclosures of Fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 47)

¢ Investment in unquoted equity shares (Note 5A)

¢ Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 45)

o Equity Setlled employee share based payment plan (Note 42)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from centracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer al an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recaognised.

Sale of gaods
Revenue from sale of books is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations 1o
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocaled, In determining the transaction price for the sale of books,
the Company considers the eftects of variable consideration, the existence of significanl financing components, non-
cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer {if any).




Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019
{(Amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

The provision for anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates. The provision for turnover
discount, cash discount & additional discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration 0
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The vartable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant reverrue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not oceur when the associated uncestainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. Some of the contracts with customer provide a right to customer of cash rebate/discount if
payment is cleared within specified due dates.

s Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right ta retwrn the goods within a specified period. The provision for
anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates as this method best predicls the amount
of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. The requirements in [nd AS 115 on constraining
estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that
can be included in the transaction price.

* Volume rebates

The Company provides volume rebates to certain customers once the value of products purchased during the period
exceeds a threshold specified in the contract, -Rebates are offsei against amounts payable by the customer. To
estimate the variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely amount
method for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected value method for confracts with more than
one volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily
driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then applies the requirements
on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the expected fulure rebates.

o (Cash rebates

The Company provides cash rebates to certain customers if customers make the payment within the stipulated time
given in the contract. The provision for cash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends. The
Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of vartable consideration and recognises a refund
liability for the expected future rebates.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right 1o consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Cempany performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of ime is required before payment of the consideration is-due):

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. 1f a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services (o the customer, .a contract Liability is. recognised when.the pavmentisinade-or-the
payment is due {whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under
the contract.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount ouistanding and the rate applicable
for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and other interest-bearing financial assets, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate thal exacily discounts the estimated future cash receipts
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Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019
{Amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, o the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and simifar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement
of profit or loss.

Dividends
Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally
whén shareholders approve the dividend.

Inid AS 115 adoption

Ind AS 1135 supersedes [nd AS 8 Revenue and it applies, with Jimited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Ind AS |15 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers
and requires thal revenue be recognised al an amount that reflecis the consideration to which an entily expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services 1o a customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances
when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for
the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related 1o fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard
requires extensive disclosures.

The company adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective methed of adoption with the date of initial
application of | April 2018. Under this method, the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of initial
application or only to contracts that are not completed al this date. The standard is applied retrospectively only fo
contracts thal arc nol completed as al the date of initial application and comparalive information is not restated in the
financial statements. Further there were no significant adjustments required to the retained earnings at April 1, 2018.
The adoption of the standard did not have any material impact on the recognition and measurement ol revenue and
related items in the financial results.

Income faxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 1o the tax
authorities in accordance with the Indian [ncome Tax Act, 1961, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reponting date in the countrics where the Company operates
and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Cument tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directiy in equity. Management pericdically evaluates positions taken m the tax refurns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
—Habiiterand theircartying aiisunts Tor financial feportiig purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxabie temporary differences, except:
i. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction

that is not & business combinalion and, at the time ol the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss
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Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to financial statcments for the year ended 31 March, 2019
(Amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

ii. Ln respect of taxable 1emporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temperary differences
will nof reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the cany forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

i. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary dilference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the (ransaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

il. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates. deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred 1ax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow all or part of the deferred tax asset o be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assel (o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is seftled, based on tax rates (and tax taws) that have becn enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation Lo the underlying transaction cither in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferved tax liabilities are offset il a legally enforceable right exists to set off cwrent tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferved taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plaat and equipment

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), property, plant and equipment, except land and building acquired before 1%
April 2016, were carried in the balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all its item of property, plant and
equipment as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial as deemed cost at the transition date, viz, April 01, 2016.

On March 31, 2006 the company revalued its land and_building situated at Sahibabad. This land and building are
measured al fair value on the revaluation date less accumulated depreciation and impainment losses, if any, recognized
after the date of revaluation. In case of revaluation of fixed assets, any revaluation surplus is credited to the revaluation
reserve.

__Capital work_in_progress, plavt_and equipment are stated at cost, ngt of accumylated depreciation and/or accumulated

impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are mel. When significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its
cost is recognised in Lhe carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The
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present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use, is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

In accordance with Ind AS 10) provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has elected to apply [nd AS
accounting for business combinations prospectively from 19 April 2016. As such, Indian GAAP balances relating to
business combinations entered into before thal date, have been carried forward with no adjustinents. (Refer Note 3).

Depreciation
Till March 31, 2017 depreciation on preperty, plant and equipment was being provided on written down value method.
W.e.f. April 01,2017 depreciation is being provided on straight line method.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, have been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight line method, using rates determined based on management’s technical assessment of usefu!

economic lives of the asset.

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Calegory of assets Useful life as adopted by management | Useful life as per Sehedule 11

Plant and equipment 15 - 25 years 15 years
| Office Equipment . 5-15 years 5 years
Furnirure & fixture o 10 vears 10 years
Vehicle 8§ - 10 vears 8 years
Others — Computer 3 - 6 years 3 vears
Electrical Installations 10 years 10 vears
| Building (including factory building) 40 - 60 vears 30 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over economic useful life or unexpired peried of lease whichever is less. Assels
costing T 5,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the year of purchase.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain
items of plant and machinery, vehicles, computers and building over estimated useful lives which are different from
vseful life preseribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognilion of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of'the asset} is included
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
finanecialyear end-and-adjusted prospeetively- it appropriate:

Intangible assets

Under the previcus GAAP (Indian GAAP), intangible assets were carried in the balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value
—for-ah-its-itemrof-intangible-assetsasTecognised mitsinmdiar GAAP financial-as decmed costat the (ransition datg, viz,

April 01,2016,

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related (0 first time adoption, the Company has elected to apply Ind AS
accounting for business combinations prospectively from April 01, 2016. As such, Indian GAAP balances relating to
business combinations entered into before that date, including goedwill, have been carried forward with no adjustments
(refer Note 4).
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019
(Amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

Recognition and measurement

[ntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assels acquired
in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when it is incurred.

Amortisation and useful lives
The useful iives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected vseful life or the expected patiern of conswmption of luture economic benefits embodied in the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
gstimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite tives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. if not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profil or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as
an intangible assel when the company can demonstrate all the following:
i The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale. [ts intention
to complete the asset.

ii.  ls ability to use or sell the assel. How Lhe assel will generate fulure economic benefits

tii.  The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset

iv.  The ability to measure reliably the expenditure afiributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
asset begins whenrdevelopientiscomplete and theasietis available for use-Itis amorfized on e straight-Jine basis-over
the period of expected future benefit from the related project. Amortization is recognized in the statement ol profit and
logs. During the peried of development, the assel is tested for impaininent annually.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortization method used Internally
generated or
acquired
Compater software FFinite (3 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
_ over the period of useful lives
Goodwill on business | Indefinite No amortization Acquired
combination
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Copyrights Finite (5 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired _—]
over the period of copyright

Content development Finite {10 seasons) Amortized on straight line basis | Internally generated
over the period of content

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an assel (hat necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other ¢osts that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases

The detennination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inceplion of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the arvangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangeiment.

Company as a Lessee

A lease is classified at the incepiion date as a finance lease or an eperating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. An operating lease is a
lease other than a finance lsase.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and nel realisable value,

Caosts incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

= Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 1o their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, frst out basis.

s Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined
on first in, first out basis.

= Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
tocation and condition. Cosl is determined on First In, First Out (FIFQ) basis.

Netrealisablevalreis-theestimated selling price-imthe-ordinary cotrse ol busingss; Icssestimared costs o eompletion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non—financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 1f any
ndicatiomexists;or-whemrannuat-impanrmenttestimg - for-amazset is required, the Compdiy €slimafes the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher ol an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amounl is determined for an individual asset, unfess the
assel does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. the assel is considered impaired and is writien
down fo its recoverable amount,
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[in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessiments of the time vaiue of money and the risks specific 10 the asset. In determining
fair valuc less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. I no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriale valuation model 1s used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or ather available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecasl
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To eslimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company exirapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or
for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets exeluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date 1o determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recegnised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carmying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicale that the cartying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profil or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades).are_recognised.onthe frade-date -i.e-the-date-that-the-Gronp-commits-to-purchase-or
sell the assel.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measuremeni, financial assets are classified in four categories:

i. Financial assets at amortised cost
ii. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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iii. Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income {FYTQCI)
iv. Financial assets at fair value through profil or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A *financial instrument’ Is measured af the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i. The asset is held within a business mode! whose chjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash Mows, and

ii. Coniractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are selely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Afier initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate {EIR) method. Amortised cosl is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A debt instruments is classified as at the FVTOC]I if both of the following criteria are met:

» The ohjective of the business model is achieved both by coliecting contraclual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

+ The assel’s contractual cash flows represent SPPLL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC] category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-
recognilion of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity 1o P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTQOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity instruments at FYTOCI

All equily instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured al fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the group may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

[f the company decides o ¢lassify an equity instrument as at FVTQCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL. There is no reeycling of the amounts from QCI to P&L, even on sale
of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumnulative gain or loss within equity,

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

Financial assets at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTQC], is classified as at FVTPL.
In-addition—the-Cempany-may-elect-to-classifyafmancial-asset-which-otherwise-meetsainortized cost 6F FVTOCT
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as “accounting mismarch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

De-recognition
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A financial assel {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part o'a group of similar financial assets) is primarily

derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s standalone balance sheet) when:

s The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full withoul materjal delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through® arrangement; and either {a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantizlly all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred contro) of the asset. the
company centinues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the company also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing invelvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to

repay.

[mpairment of financial assets

In accordance with lnd-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL} model for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

+ Financial assets (that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
batance

s Financial assets that are measured as at FVTOCI

* Lease receivables under Ind-AS 17.

¢ Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 18.

@ Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

» [inancial guarantee confracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition ol impairment loss allowarce on:

i.  Trade receivables, and
ii.  All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 7,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credil risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right (rom its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
fhere Tas been & significant. increase in-the eredit risk since- initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, [2-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, il credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL. is used. [f, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is ne longer a
significant increase in credif risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulling from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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ECL is the difference between all contractual cash (lows that are due to the Company in accordance wilh the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entiy is required to consider:

s All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment extension, eall and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannol be estimated reliably, then the entity is required (o use the remaining contractual term of he financial
instrument.

s (Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of
its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the
irade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-fooking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company has estimated
provision of 3.51% is required to be made on outstanding receivables at the reporting date:

Age bracket Not due 0-215days | 215 - 365365 — 730 ) More than 730 days
days days
Credit Loss Rate 0.02% 0.86% 23.10% 100% 100%

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statemenl of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head *other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance
sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

The balance sheel presentation for varicus financial instruments is described below:-

a) For financial assets measured as at amoitised cost and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as
an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the assel meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairmenl allowance fiom the
gross carrying amount,

) Loan commitments and firancial guarantee contracts: ECL 15 presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as
a liability.

c} Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financiai assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment
amount’ in the OCI,

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial mstruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e.. financial assets
whiclrare credit impaired on-purchase/ origination.

Financial liahilities
Initial recognition and measurement

“Financial liabilitics are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly atiributable transaction costs.
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The Company’s financtal liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profil or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financia! liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses atiributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gainsiloss are nol
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or Toss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of prafil or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is inciuded as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies o
borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financiat guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment (o be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
(ransaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the aimount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount
recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability fs discharged or canceiled or expires. When
an existing financiai Jiability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability dre substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Re-classification of Financial Assets
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. Afier initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial hiabilities. For financial assets
___which are debi instaunents .a reclassification.is-made onbrifthere-is a-change-in-the-business-medel-for1nanaging-those
assets. Changes o the business model are expected (o be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines
change in the business model as a resull of external or intemal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model accurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. [fthe Company reciassifies financial
assels, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the change in business medel. The Company does not restale any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 1o settie on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.14 Retirement and other empioyee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Cempany has no obligation,
other than the centribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable o the provident
fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. if the contribution payable to the scheme for
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme
is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the eifect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefil liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a correspending debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
+ The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate te the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

¢ Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
seitlements; and

¢ Net interest expense or income.

Compensated absences

Accumulated Jeave, which js expected to be utilized within the next |2 months, is freated as shori-term employee benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a vesult of
the-unused-entittement that-has acenmmlatedat thereportingrdate:;

2.15 Provisions

General

——Provisions-arerecogmsed-whernrthe Company-has-a presentobligation{legator consructive) as g resulrofa pasreveir,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seitle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, When the Company expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shorl-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less. which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand and short term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic Eamings per Share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of
the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted eamings per share amounts are caleulaled by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive
potential equity shares into equity shares.

Cash dividend and non-cash distribution te equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws
in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A comresponding amount is recognised
directly in equily.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be disiributed with fair value re-measurement
recognised directly in equify.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying
amounl of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Significant accounting judgements, esttmates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures (including contingent liabilities). The management believes
that the estimates used n preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Uneertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
or liabilities affected in future periods.

A. Judgement

[nn the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant ¢ffect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Company as a lessee
The Company has entered into lease agreements with lesser and has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms

and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constiluting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it does not retains the significant risks and rewards of ownership
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of these propertics and accounts for the contracls as operating leases.
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of
revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining method {o estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracis for the sale of books include cash rebates and volume rebates and a right to return the goods that give
rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the
expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration Lo which it will be entitled.

The most likely amount method is used for those contracts with a single volume threshold, while the expected value
method is used for contracts with more than ene volume threshold.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price. the Company considers whether the
amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration
are not constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic conditions. In addition,
the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the conirol of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis, Revisions lo accounting estimaltes are recognised prospectively.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates- Duetothe complexities-invelved-irthe valuation and-its long-term-nature, a defined benefit-obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reportling date.

The parameter most subject 1o change is the discount rate, In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds with term that correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit
obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tabies. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval
in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future
inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details aboul gratuity ebligations are given in Note 33.

Pravision for trade receivable
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Trade receivables do not carry any inlerest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate ailowances
for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balances
and historical experience adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Individual trade receivables are writlen off when
management deems them not to be collectible. For details of allowance for doubtful debis please refer Note 5Se.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impainnent. 1f any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (*CGU") is the greater of its value in use and ils fair value
less costs to sell. [n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU. For the purpose of impaiiment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into
the sinallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or groups of assets (' CGU").

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which
management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted
average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account pasl experience and
represent management’s best estimate about future developments.

Estimating variable consideration for right of return, volume rebates and cash rebates

Certain contracts for the sale of books include a right of return, volume rebates and cash rebates that give rise to variable
consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Group is required to use either the expected value method
or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of consideration 10 which it will
be entitled.

The Company estimates variable considerations to be included in the transaction price for the sale of electricity with
cash rebates.

Standards issued but not yet effective

a. Ind AS 116 “Leascs”
Ind AS 116 Leases was notified on March 30, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind
AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April, 01, 2019.

Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under
Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets and shorl-term
leases. Al the commencement date of a lease a lessee will recognise.a liabilitv to.make lease payments-and-an-asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term. Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under Ind AS 17, Lessors will
_continue to classify all leases.nsing the same classification.principle.as-in Ind-AS-LZ-and distinguish-between-two-typas
of leases: operating and finance leases.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April I, 2019, The slandard permits
two possible methods of transition:

(a) Full retrospeclive — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
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(b} Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard
recognized at the date of initial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:
{a) lis carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s
increinental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or
(b} Anamount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments reiated
to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application.

Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods.

The company is under the process of evaluation of available transition options and a reliable estimate of the quantitative
impact of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements will only be possible once Company completes its assessment.

b. Appendix C 10 Ind AS |2 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatmean

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notifled Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit {or loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12,
According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax
treatment, or group of tax treatments, that ihe companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has
Lo be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable
profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - i) Full retrospective approach — Under this approach,
Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 —
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and ii) Retrospectively with
cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without
adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April I, 2019. The
Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date
ol initial application i.c. April |, 2019 without adjusting comparatives.

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insignificant in the financial stalements,
c. Amendment to Ind AS 12: lncome Taxes

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendinents Lo the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’,
in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall'recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or 1oss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is
currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial statements..

d. Amendment to Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Seftlement

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or setilement oceurs during
a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the
annual reporting period, an entity is required 1o:




Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to financial statcments for the year ended 31 March, 2019
(Amounts in Rs Million, unlcss otherwise stated)

»  Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used Lo re-measure the net defined benefil liability (asset) reflecting
the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event.

e Deterinine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
using: the net defined benefit liability {asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets
after that event; and the discount rate used 1o re-measure that net defined benefit liability (asset).

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, without
considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognised in profit or loss.

An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement. Any change
in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net interest, is recognised in other comprehensive income.

The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or seltlements eccurring on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period that begins on or after 1 April 2019. These amendments will apply only to any future plan
amendments, curtailments, or settiements of the Company.

e. Amendment to Ind AS 109: Prepayment Feature with Negative Compensation

Under [nd AS 109, a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or al fair value through other comprehensive
incame, provided that the contractual cash flows are 'solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding’ {the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the appropriate business model for that classification.
The amendments to [Ind AS 109 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of the event or
circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable
compensation for the early termination of the contract.

The amendments should be applicd retrospectively and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2019,

The company is under the process of evaluation impact on the financial statements of the Company.
f. Amendment to Ind AS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture to which
the equity method is not applied but thal, in substance, form part of the net investment in the associate or jeint venture
{long-term interests}. This clarification is relevant because it implies that the expected credit loss model in Ind AS 109
applies to such long-tenm interests.

The amendments also clarified that, in applying Ind AS 109, an entity does not take account of any losses of the associate
or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognised as adjustments to the net investment in the
associate or joint venture that arise from applying Ind AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The amendments should be applied retrospectively in accordance with Ind AS 8 for annual reporting periods on or after
I April 2019,

The company is under the process of evaluation impact on the financial statements of the Company.

g. Annual improvement to Ind AS (2018),
These impravements include:

Amendments to Ind AS 103: Party to a Joint Arrangements obtains contrel of a husiness that is a Joint Operation




Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019
(Amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

The amendments ciarify that, when an party to a joint arrangement obiains contrel of a business that is a joint operation,
it applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring previously held
interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair value. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures its entire
previously held interest in the joint operation.

An entity applies those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after | April 2019. These amendments are currently not applicable
to the Company but may apply (o future transactions.

Amendments to Ind AS 111: Joint Arrangements

A parly that participates in, but does not have joint contrel of, a joint operation might cbtain joint centrol of the joint
operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business as defined in Ind AS 103. The amendments
clarify that the previcusly held interests in that joint operation are not re-measured.

An entity applies those amendments to transactions in which it obtains joint control on or afier the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or afier | April 2019. These amendments are currently not applicable te the
Company but may apply to future transactions.

Amcndments to Ind AS 23: Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general berrowings any borrowing originaily made to develop a
qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary 1o prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

An entity applies those amendments to borrewing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting pertod
in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entily applies those amendments for annual reporting periods
beginning on orafier 1 April 2019. Since the Company’s currenl practice is in line with these amendments, the Company
does not expect any effect on its financial statements.
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Vilias Publishing House Private Limited
Neles to financial stalement as at 31 March 2009
CIN: UT4899DL197H I CO05766

5, Financial asseés

A, Investments

(Rs. In miliion)

Asal
3f March 2019

Asal
31 March 2015

4. Investments at cost
i, lnvestments in equity shares {Lnquoted)

Invesiments in suhsidiaries

4900 (Previous year 4.900) shares of Rs. 10 each fuily paid up in M/s Now Sariswatl

[ouse (fndia} Privaie Limied

100 (Previous vear 100) shares of Re 10 cach {ully paid up wn MYs Salan Digiad

Fducation [nitiative Private [ nuated

Current
Non-Current

3B, Trade reccivables

7000 7000

o0 0.00
T0.00 70.00
70.00 70.00

{Rs. In milfion)

As ar
31 Murch 2019

Asai
31 varchk 2018

Trade receivables
Secured, considered goad

Linsecured, considered good 1.449.19 1,567 18
Reeeivable which have sigruficant increase in eredit risk 76.49 5790
Recervable ceedit impairei - -
1,525.68 1,625.08
Less: Allowance for expected cvedif loss
Seeured, considered good -
Unsecured. considered good - -
Recervable which have significant increase in credit risk (76.49) {57.90}
Receivable credit impaired - -
{76.49) (57.90)
Net trade receivables
Secured, considered good - .
Unsecured, considered gond 1,449.19 1.367.18
Receivable which bave significant increase in credit risk - -
Receivable credil impairad - -
1,449.19 1,567.18.
Trade receivables from related parties {refer note 32b) 496.63 45720
£ urrend 449,10 156718
Noen-Current - -
The movenent in impaivmwent of (rade recvivables s follow:
(Rs. In million)
As al Az at
D 31 Macch 2059 — 31 Mareh-2048—
Opening balance 5790 56 87
Addivons 33510 12,14
Wrile off (net of recovery} {14 92) {11 11)
Closing halance 76.4% 57.90

Mo trade receivible are due from directors or olher olficers of the Company either severally or jointly with any otler person,

i



Vileag Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to [inancial statenient as at 31 March 2019
CIN: U74899DL1971PTCO#5766

sSC.

5D.

3E.

Loans

(s, In million)

As at
31 March 2019

Asal
31 March 2018

Security deposits - Non Current

Security deposils - Current

Advances recoverabie in casiv or kind (refer nole {a) below)
Total Loans and Advances

Current
Non-Current

Note (a}

Advances recaverable in cash or kind

Considered good, unseeured

Conzidered good. secured

Recoverable which have significant inerease i credit risk
Recoverable - credit impaired

Less: Allowance for expecied crodit loss

Cash and cash equivalents

11.40 10.14

217 1.84
2143 21.32
35.00 33.30
23.60 23.16
11.44 114
21.43 21.32
2143 21,32
21.43 21.32

{Rs, In millicn)

As at
31 darch 2019

As at
31 March 2018

3alances will: banks
- In corrent accounls
Cash i hand
Cheques in hand
Total Cush and cash equivalents

Current
Non-Current

Other Anancial asscts

136.09 90.76
| 49 010
64 98 21.69
Z02.56 112,55
202.56 1255

{Rx. In million)

As af
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Margin moncy deposit (reler nole a below)
- Deposits with remaining maturity for less than 12 months
- Dieposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months
Total other finaacial assets

Current
Non-Current

Naote {n)

buyer eredit taken from indusind Bank.

76.35 7935

292 3.06

— TZT 10.81
76.35 775

2m 3.00

_ i Margin money. deposit with g camying amouatolLRe- Nil—3 LMarsh-204 8- Re=5:94-milthor- s -beerearmarked tor e reppagient of

ii. Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of Rs. 4.18 million (31 March 2018: Rs. 4,33 million]) are subject to st charges Lo

secure the company's EPCG bank guarantces.

iii. Margin meney deposits with carrying amount of Rs. 0 5% million (31 March 2018: Rs. (.54 miltion) is subject (0 Repistraiion ol 1P

VAT & DVAT.

fv. Margin money deposits will carryving amount of Rs. 74.50 milion (31 March 2018: Rs. Nil) has been carmarked against the [.C

taken from Indusind Bank.

i
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Vikas Fublishing House Private Limited
MNetes (o Minancial stziement as at 31 March 2009
CIN: L745899DL1971 PTCHIS766

6. inventories

(R& In millign}

As at
31 March 2019

As at
3t March 2018

31 March 2019

Raw malerials 10.60 837
Raw materials others - 246
Printig matenal 23.88 12,82
Work in progress 1.31 1117
‘Traded goods 13.80 1746
Fimshed goods 437 10 355.86
‘Folal Invenlorics 486.69 408. 14
Other assets
AL Capital advanges
{Rs. 1 million)
As at As al

31 Miazch 2018

Unsecured, considered pood
Total capital advances

7B. Prepaid expenses

1.00

245

.00

2.45

(Rs. [n million)

Asal
31 March 2069

As al
31 March 2018

Prepaud expenses (Non current} 1.10 1.70
Prepaid expenses {Curment) 11.1§ 4.6l
Total Prepaid expenses 12.28 6.31
Current 11,18 4.4l
Non-Current 200 4.15

7L, Income tax asset (nef)
{R4. In mitlion}

As al
31 March 2019

Asgat
31 March 2018

Advanee 1neonie Loy (net of provision 32,44 |43
Total 22,44 [.d3
Delerred taxes
{135 In million)
As at As al

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Hems leading to-eveation of deferrel tavmsers

hupact of expenditure charged o the statement of profit und loss accownt m the eurrent 776 995
year but allowed for 12x purposes on payment basts in subsequent years

Provision for doubtiul debt & udvances 2228 16.56
Total deferred inx nssets 30.04 26.81

[tems leading to creation of deferred tax liabilities R — —

Fised assets  impact ol differences between lux  depreciation and  depreciation/ 56.78 2583
antortization charged 1n the financial statements
Tatal deferred tax linbilities 56.78 25.83
Net deferred tay asscts/{liabilities) {26.74} 0.98
No
o
i L.\,\ i; i



Vikas Publishing llguse Private Linited
MNaoles to Bnancial stutement as a¢ 31 March 2019
CIN: U489 DL97I P C005766

Y. Share Capital {Rs. In millign)

Ay al As al
3 March 2019 31 March 2018
Authorised
65.000 ¢31 March 2018 65.000) cquity shares ol Rs 100/~ cach & 30 630
[ssued, subseribed and fully paid up
40,140 {31 March 2018 40,140} equity shares of Rs 1004~ each 401 44|
4.1 4,01

#. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equily shares sumbers (Rs. In million)
Issued, subsecibed und Tully paid uvp

Asall April 2017 40,140 401
Incicasei Decrease} during the year - -
Asat 31 Alarch 2018 Atk t40 <.
Increasce/{Decrense) during the veur - -
As at 31 March 2019 0,140 4.01

b. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Compaery [us only one class of equity shares hiaving a par value of Rs, 100 per share Fach holder of equity shares is entitled to ong vole per share.
Mo dividen his heen proposed by the Board of Directors durine the year ended 31 March 2019 131 March 2018 NILY In the event of liguidation of
the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaming assels of the Company. atter disttibution of all peeferential amounts (he

distribution will be i peepottion 1o the number af equity shares held by the sharcholders.

. Shares hetd by holding compazny and their subsidiaries

{Rs. In million)

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

§ Chand And Company Limiled (formerly $ Chand And Campany Private | imited)
Nitja Publishers & {'rinters Privaw Limited, Subsidiary of the Heldmg Company

d. Deinils of sharchoiders holding moce 1than 5% equily shaces in the Company:

393
0.08

No. of shares held

393
0.08

% of holding

§ Chand And Company 1 imited. the Holding Company (formeily 8 Chand And Company Private Limited)

As a1 31 March 2018
As at 31 March 2019

3339

34339

o8
9%,

As per records of the Company. including its register of shareholder/ member and other declarations recerved from sharchoider regarding beneficial
interest, the above sharchgtding represents both lepal and beneficizl ownership of shares

. Other equity

(Rs. 1n million}

Asat
31 March 209

Asal
31 March 2018

Retained earning

Balance as the beginning of repening year 1,33922 1,097.78
Add: Profils for the vear 630 246,15
Add: Other comprehensive income doning the vear 1442 14,71}
Batance as the end of reporiing year 141669 1,339.22
Revaluaiion reserve {refer note 50}
Balance us the beginnimy of reporting veur 31 2L k24
Inerense/{Deerense} during the vear : s
Balance as the end of reporting vear 5.2 5121
Gegeral reservi {refer note 50)
Balance as the beginoreg of reporimg year 46.30 46.30
increased{ Dececase} during the vear - -
__Balaoce as.theend of repodiog yesy . | 1630
Deemed capital contribution {refer note 50)
Balance as the heyinning of reporting year 7R 1.76
tnerensed Plecoeee tduning the year 0.33 202
Balance as the end ol reporting year 4.11 3.78




¥ikas Puhlishing House Private Limited
Nates to financiaf statement as o 31 March 2019
Clv: PTIERDLIYTIF TC00S 66

1. Rorrmwinges

1A, Non-current horrowings

{Rs. In million)

AL at

31 dDarch 2019

Asal
M NEarch 2018

Term Loans

T'oreim curmency 1oan foom banks (securcd) (reler note ¢ and © belaw)

Indsan mipee loan ftoi hanks (secw ed) (refer note d below)

Indian neggree loan fiam Gnaneal nstinnon gecured] {reler natc o and 12 below)

Eudian 1pee boan wrom related party (Holling company - Unscenred ) (1efir note b helow
Vehicle Loans

Indean nipew Toan from Danks (seovced ) {redir nue o md b below )

Indian rugeee Joom trom Gnoueal mstitunoen (secured | {refer nate Uhelovey

Total Non-current boreowings

Secured
Unsecured

Frorm banl imcluiles :-

4647 -
737 2745
260,00 41600
0.3% O]
356 419
32378 J4T.85
A1.78 3195
266,00 414,00

w Company Iees Lahon vehicle loan from HDFC Bank Looued winch carmes micrast a0 9.50% poa I ds repayable in 60 Montly cquated monthly insalients, steming

from May 2006 and it s secored by lwpothecaiou of tespective-velucly,

h.  Cowmpany fws 1aken velicle loan amowining Rs, 0635 million from 1CICL Bank Limdted which carties inerest at 9.26% p.a. T 1 depayable in 36 Monthly eguared

manthly mstabnents, staning from May 2018 and nt is secured by lypothecation of respevtive vehuele

e D 1YOIS= 19 ahe Company has sihen frepn curmency tenn foan for the pupose of working capital from REL Bank Limited which carries mierest 1 9.95% paa. It

is cepayaibshe 012 quarechy nwtalments, staing fBem January 2009 1is seenred by frst part passu charge by way of hypothecaticn on entire cunont assets inclusive
ol stock wnd book debts and movable fixed asseis (excluding ihose assels which ace specifically clisrged 10 other lenders), Goth presont and lure and corporate

guaraitee of 5 Chond And Company Litmited, Interest 1o be paid on montlly basis. Pencipal and interest both are fully hedued by RBL Bank Limited

A, Duringe Y 18-19 e Company: has laben loan agamst propesty from Deutsche Bank which carmes enerest a 11.30% pa I js repayvable w120 couated monthly
mstalmeits, starting Fum barch 20009, [t ix seeured by equitable morteane of propeny beanng no. F-28. Seetor -8, Nowda (U 17 ),

From financial inskinetions includes :-

e Comwpany has taken fdiree 1am loa fron Siemens Fnancial Services Povate Dimid for purchase oM machines during the year 2017218, wlich cumes miterest @
TLE0% pa [ is repayable n 3¢ Monthly eguated monthly instalmenis and 1 15 seoured by by pothecanan s respeciine aglnne amd Corpocate Soaramee of 8 Clued

And Company Lidted

£, Compamy has tohen velnele Toan froon 1anmder Finaneial Services Poviae Tamned wlich carmes mterest w0 %% poa i 1s vepayable in 36 dMenthly instalentz, stanivg,

fonn Septeniber 2007 and it 18 secared by ypothecation of respective vehicle

g.  Company has taken three term loans from Siemens Finanoia) Sendues Private Lanited for purchuse of machmes, which caerivs intenest rangng betweea 11.3% 10 13%
par 10 s repavable in 33 10 3 cquoied montlily inslalments and it is secured by Tvpoihecation of respective inachine and Corporate Gurranree of § Chand Aad
Company Linted, Congrny his wade interest free refundnble secunly deposits of Ry 2 73 oullion to kender, fudduded i non cunrent seesirits: depuasit i fote 3¢ Om

o these Hhree [vaps | one loan has been fully repaid doring the vear 201819,

From related party includes :-

b Congruawy hias tiken a eprienal comvernible loan of mnmmding Rs 466 UG milhon Jrom 8 Chamd And Company Limited which cames inerest G0 SBI 2 vear MOLR =
250 husls points pa Tenn of loa s 3 years Loan can be convendtflile e the vption of bomower after | ey und of mot convented on or before 3 years the loan shall be
repaid on the completion of 3 years, Company bas repaid R 50 mallion Juwing the year 2007-18 and Rs, 156 million during e vear 2008-19.

Loan covenanis

o Pl Tty T Tequieed O Oy W S I To i S entioned iy the- Ioan agrooments falurs of which makes the Joamte berepaid-on demand w e
diseretion of 1le bank. As at Marele 31, 2012 1he Campany could not meet somie of the delt covenants and accordingly the entire lon has been classified has been

clussiiied under "current matusity of lomg e borrowing”




Vikas Publishing [1ouse Private Limired
Notes to financigl stagement s at 31 March 2009
Cix: 48990 L1971PTL005766

[113. Current borrowiogs

{Rs. In million)

As at s al
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Current maiority of long term borrowings
Term loans

Fortign currency loan from banks (secured) 137,30 -
Indian rupee Woan from banks {secured) 2.78 -
Indian rupee 1oan from Gnancial instifulion (scoured) 20,08 20.66
Vehicke loan

Indian rupee loan from banks {secured) (.38 52
Indian rupec loan from financial instilution {sccured) 0.57 {85
Tatal current maturity of long term borrowings fal.51 31.03

Buyers eredit

Foveign currency loan from bank (sceured) (refer note ¢ befow) - 39.69
Cash ¢redit

Indian rupce loan from bank {secured) {refer note a belaw) 359.82 169.61

Waorking capital demand loan

Indian rupee loan rom bank (secured) {refer note b beiow) $0.00 240,00
Total current borrowings 601.33 510.33
Less: Amount presented under "other financial liabilitics” {161.51) {31.03)
Net current borrowings 439.82 47930

Secured 439.82 479.30
Unsecured - -

Company has tahen the cash credil Facifity fronr MI-C Bank, Indusind Bank, DBS bank, RBI. Bank. 1I5BC Bank and Standard
Charicred Bank which carrics interest at MCLR plus spread (ranging from  1.30% 10 2,13 %) p.a which are repayable on demand. Cash
credil facility availed 1o the extent of sanction linit. is sccueed by first pari passu charge (by hypothecation) on entite cxisting and Talure
current asscts and movable fixed asseis {excluding speetfically charged 0 other lenders) and corporaste guarantee of 8 Chand And
Company Limited and has been considered as secured. Cash credil avanled over and above the sancliom limit has been considered as
unsceured and carries samie tnlercst rale as secured facility snd is repayable on demand. Cash credii Facility Irom Indusind Bank has been
repaid during the Mnancial yoar 2018-19.

Working capital demand loan from HDFC Bank, DRS Bank, RBL Rank, HNSBC Bank and Standard Chartercd Bank carries interest
ranging lfom §.75% to 10.20% p.a which are repayable on maturity. Working capital demand loan is facility is the sul limit of cash credit
tacility and sceured by the sante security ag provided in cash credit faciiity mentioned in point no. a sbove

Buyers credit from Indusind Bank carries interest al 1.72 % p.a facility is scovred by first pari passu charge {by hypothecation) on entire
existing and fuwire current assets and movable fixed assels (excleding specifically charged 1o other lenders) and comamle guaranteg of S
Chand And Company Limited, Tlus loan has begn repaid in (udl during te year,

Trade payables
{Rs. Tnrmillion)

Asat As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Trade pa_yablcs ol micro enterprisgs and small cnmerprises (refer note 34) 2539 -

Trade payables other than micro enterprises and smalf enterprises 589,48 453.39
Fotatrdepaysbles —— R T 01487 453.3%
Current 6l4.87 453.39

Non-Current - -
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13. Other financial liabilities
(Rs. In million}

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Current mattirity of tong term borrowings (refer note 1 1B above) 161.51 31.03
Interest accrued bul not due on borrowings 513 4223
Payable to employees 44.91 39.80
Total other financial liakilitics 201,55 113.06
Current 211.55 113.06

Non current - -

14. Provisions
{Rs. In million)

As at As at
3] March 2019 31 March 2018

Provision lor gratuity 19.05 34,17
Provisicn for income lax {nel of advance Lax) (refer note 43) 33.51 72.15
Total provisions 52,50 £06.32
Current 33.51 7215
Non current 19.05 34.17

15. Other linabilities
(Rs. In million)

As at As at
3 March 2019 3t March 2018

Other payables:

Statutory dues 21.07 23.07
Advance itom cusiomers 14.44 9.31
Total other liabilitics 3551 32.38
Current 35.51 32.38

Non current - -

(This spuce has been intentionally left blank)
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[6. Revenue from operaticns
{Rs. In million)

Far the year ended For the yvear ended

3t March 2019 31 March 2018
Sale of manulaciured products
Finished goods (Publishing and Printing) [IRRY] 1.875.78
Less: {Yiscounis {282.49} _{278.03)
1,329.38 [.597.75
Sale of services
Job worle 40162 Jeiis
Royally income 1.00 1.20
402.62 36135
Sale of traded goods
Books 22.24 14.49
Paper 14.36 37.00
Less™ Discounts {3.73) -
92.87 51.4%
Other nperafing revenune
Scrap sales 2823 34,52
28.23 3452
Total revenue from eperations 1.853.10 204511

Disaggregaicd revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:
{Rs. 1n million)

Segment For ihe year ended 31 March 2049
Publishing Printing
Type of good or service
Sale of manufctured goods 1.182.2] 147,17
Sale of traded goods 18.51 74.36
Scrap sales 2.37 23.86
Jobwork {printing ol books) - 401.62
Conlent & royally income 1.00 -
Tao(al revenue from ¢ontraets with customers 1.204.09 G49.01
India 1.204.09 64901
Oulstde India - -
Tatal revenue [rem contracts with customers 1,204.09 649.01

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred al a point in time 1,203.09 247.39

Services transferred over time 1.0 401.62

Taotal revenne from contracts with »wefamers 1.204.09 G49.01
LA
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(Rs. In million)

Segment For the year ended 31 March 2018
Publishing Printiog
Type of good or service
Saile of manufactured goods 1.345.73 253,02
Sale of traded goods 14,49 3700
Scrap sales 2.38 3214
Jabwork (primting ol books) - 36015
Conleal & royally income 1.24) -
Total revenue from contracis with customers 1,363.80 681.31
{ndia 1.363.80 081 31
QOuiside India - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,363.80 681,31
Timiag of revenue recognition
Goods Itansierred at a poinl in time 1.362.00 321 16
Serviees transferred over time 1.20 360.15
Total revenue from coniracis with custamers [.363.80 031.31

The Company collests Goods and Service Tax {GSTY on behalf of the Government on sale of certain books and on services. Tlence. GST

is not included in Revenue from operations.

Contract balances

(Rs. In million)

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Trade recoivables 144919 1,567.18
Contract assels - -
Contract liabilifies .44 931

Trade receivables arc non-interest bearing and are gencrally on terms of 150 days. In March 2019, INR 3351 million {March 2018: INR
12.14 million) was recognised as provision (or expecled credit losses on trade reccivables.

Right to réturn asset and refund liability

{5 In million)

March 31, 201% March 31, 2018
Refund lizhilities
Arising from discounis 155.52 120.81
Arising from rights of retum 315.03 173.27
$70.55 294.08

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the séatemnent of profil and luss with the contracted price

Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue as per contracled price 2.749.11 2,673.24
Adjustments
Sales retum {600.79) {350.1th)
Discount {286.22) {278.03)
1,853.10 24045.11

Pertormance abligation

Information about the Company s performance obligations are summarised below:

Muanufactured goods

The performance obligation s satisfied vpon delivery of the goods 10 the wansporter designaied by the customer or 10 the customer

whichever is carlier.

The enstomer hus 2 right lo return material (e an cxlent as may be agreed upon with cach customer or within the limits as may be
determined by the company. The customer s also eligible for discounts based on achievement of revenue targels as may be agreed.

Services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon when services are provided.
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17. Other Income
{Rs. In million)
For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
17.1 Finance [ncome
Interest income
-on bank deposit 247 1.0l
-on Lax relund 0.78 [RE!
-on others (.06 -
Unwind of interest on security deposits .32 0.16
Total Msanee income {A) 3.03 241
7.2 Qiher lncome
Foreign exchange differences {net) 1.10 -
Miscellaneous meome 2.81 0.44
Amount wrilten back 4.59 -
Gain on sate ol property, plant and equipment (et} (.03 -
Tatul ether tncome (B} 7.73 0.44
Grand Total {A+B) 11.36 2.85

(This space has been ndennonadly feft blank)
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[B. Cost of eaw materia) tonsumed

{Rs. ¥n million)

For the year ended
31 Murch 209

For the year ended
3 March 2018

Inventorics at the begmning of the year
Add  Purchases during the yeur

Less | loventory wiitten off’

Lues © eost of sales of paper
Less : Inventories at the end ol the year

Details of raw material purchagsed
Paper

19, Cost of traded goods sold

837 125,75
442 15 35126
450.52 177.01

- (1.90}
(73.76) {31.25)
{10.60) (8.37)
366,16 435,49
44215 351.26
442.15 351.26

{Rs. [n miltion)

Iior the year ended
31 March 2019

Ior the year vnded
31 March 2018

Inventortes al the beginning of the year
Add : Purchases during the year

Less : Inventories at (he end of the vear

20 Cost of printing maierial consumed

1746 18.81
86.55 4143
104.01 60.24
(13.30) {1746)
921 42,78

{Rs. In million}

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ¢nded
31 March 2018

Inventories af ihe beginning of the year
Add Purchases duning the year

Less  Inventories at the end of the year

Delaits of printing material purchased
Printing binding inatenal

2

{Increase)/Decrease io inventories

12,82 1658
161,32 123,09
174.14 139.68
(23.88) {12,823
150.26 126.86
161.32 12309
161.32 123,09

{Bs. 1o million)

For the year ¢nded
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2008

[nventories at the end of the year
Frmsired petdy
Waork in progeess

Inventories al the beginning of the year
Vinished goods
_ Work inprogress .

{Increase)decrease in inventories

3706 355:80

1,31 117

438.41 367.03

355 86 522

E—— 2240
367.03 27.62

(71.38) (39.41)

D,
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o
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22

pA)

[}elails of inventories

{Rs. In million)

For Ihe year ended
31 March 2009

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Worli in progress
Pomted material for books

Finished goods
- Manufactured goods
Books
Traded goods
Rooks

Raw materisi
Iraper

Printing material
Others

Publicalion expenses

1.3 1117
1.31 [1.17
43710 355.86
13,840} 17.46
450.94 373.32
10.60 .37
23.88 12 82
- 246
34.4% 23.65

{Rs. Ino million)

For the year ended
3L March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Prnuing and binding charges

Power & fucl

Packing expenses

Repas and matntenanee - machinery
Cther publishing enpenses

Rovalty expenses

Freight inward

Total publication expenses

Lmployee benefit expenses

124.72 131,13
58 38 4884
3606 3020
3081 3632
2420 2370
2794 51.62

4 10 3.87

311.21 325.70

{Rs. tn millian}

For the year ended
31 Murch 2019

Fer the year ended
31 March 2018

Salanes. wages and bonus

Lmployee slock option expense {refer note 42)
Contribution to provident ane ather tunds
Gratusly expense (refer note 36)

Sialfwelthre expenses

Tatal employee benelits ex penses

Selling and distriba#tion expenses

33738 298.66
033 202
16,38 17.12
In.68 .10
1329 13.32
381.06 340.22

{[s. En million)

For the year cnded
31 Marcch 2010

For the year ended

31 Murch 2018

Travelling and conveyance

Freight and forwarding chas ges
Advertisement aned sales promotion
Book workshop expenses

Total selling and distribution expenses

0641
46,42
2993
15.82

D— I || 5 %

58.04
48.14
2562
1204
e 2 F1 A4

169,75

155.51
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25

26

27

Finance ¢ost

{Rs. In million)

For the year ended
31 March2019

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2018

Interest

Bank charges

Amortizalion of ancillary borrowing cests
Tetat finance cost

Idepreciadion and smorlisation expenses

11403 118.64
6.2 N

- (.70
125,15 122,55

{3, Tn millian)

For the vear ended
31 March 201¢

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Depreciation of property, plant & cquipment {refer note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (reler note 4}
Tatal depreciation and amortisation expenses

(iker cxpeoses

3257 29.80
24.67 20.08
57.24 49,88

{Rs, I'n million}

For the year ended
31 Muarch 2019

Far {he yvear ended
31 Marck 2018

Commuiicalion cost
Rent {refer note 31)
Rates and laxes
Insurance
Repatrs and maintenance

-Buitdings

-Others
Priwing and stationery
legal and profestional fec
Shared service cost {reler note 40)
Payment w audnor {refer detinls helow)
Security expenses
Foretgn exchange differences (net)
Carporate social responsibility expenses (refer nowe 393
Director sitting iec
Donation
Amount wntten off
Provision for bad & doybitul debrs
Property, planl and equipment discarded
Loss on sale of property. plant and equipment {net)
Miscelluneous expenses
Total olher expenses

Payment 1o auditor

6.32 SR Ls]
26.32 26.61
097 0.80
TR 9.03
1.45 1.12
kIR I s
342 343
16,88 1568
2133 -
3.08% 196
73z 7.0l
- 013
S0 4.26
0.30 0.32
4 60 -
0.92 197
3351 12,14
0.14 .
- 024
(.98 0.39
173.63 123.92

3 March 2019

Foi the year ended
31 March 2018

As audilor
Audit fee
Litmted review lee
Others

1.80 | 80
105 -

0.23 0.6
J.08 1.96
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28 Componenis of Other Comprehensive Tncome {OCH
The disageregation of changes in other comprehensive income by cach type of ¢quity 15 shown below

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 200118
Re-mcasurcment gamsfdiosses) on defined benelnl plans 20.34 (5.63)
Tax impact on re-measurainent gainsf{Josses) on deltoed benefit plans (5.92) | 94
14.42 (4.71}

29 Earnings per share
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the vear attnbutebje (o equtty holders by fhe weighted average number of Equity
shares mtslanding during the year

Dilumed EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit for the year atinbutable w equity holders by the weighied average number of equily
shares oulstanding during the vear plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all diwive poteniial
equity shares into equily shares.,

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and dilued EPS compuiations

For the year endedt  ¥For the year ended

3 March 2009 31 March 2018
Profit altributable to equity holders of the company #3.05 246 15
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing Earning per Share 40,140 40,140
{Basic & Diluted)
Basic EPS 1,570 78 613217
Diluted DIPS 1.570.78 6,132.17

{This space has been infentonafly feft blonk)
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30 Gratuity 2nd other post- employment benefits plin

The Compaziy bas a defined henefit grado by plan. Under the gratmty plan. every emiplovee wito bas completed atleass fve years of service pets a pranily
st depurtute af 13 days of las drwn salary for each esimpleled sear of service or pant thereaf 1y cxcess of sx mwonihs subject to g maximum of Ks, 2

mallion, The schene 1s funded with an insurgwe company m the form of guabifyang isurance policy.

The following 1ables sunmarize the componuents of nel benefit expense recagnisel in the pralit and loss aceount and amannts recognized in the balance

shaeet for Gratniy Plan,

Statement of Profit & Lass xecount

Net cniployec benefit expense recognised in employee Costy

{Rs. In notillien)

Far the year ended
March 31, 2019

For il year ¢nded
March 31, 2018

Corment SeTvies cost

Past service cost

ntenst vost on delined obligation
Lapected wiurm on plas asscls

Amount recopnised in Qther Comprehensive Income:

207 497
- 271
283 165
TR {0.23)
inog 919

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2009

For the year caded
March 31, 2018

Actuaisal {gainat/ lusses on ahligation
Achiianad gawms « fosses) o assels

Balanrce sheci

Chunges in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as foliows:

£20 2 6635
0.1 -
{20034y 6,65

Far the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Opetng defined benefit obligation
Current service cost

Past service cost

Mierest cost

Beneldits paid from plian asscts
Benelits paid dircetiv by employer
Actuanal {gawis) / lesses on obligation
Clpsing defined benefit oblipation

Chunges in the fair valee of plizo assels ure as follows:

3707 22,70
27 487
- 27
283 .63
{0.98) {058y
(046} [1.03)
(220 3 65
1628 37.02

For the year ended
March 31, 20019

Far the year eaded
March 31, 2018

Operung fais valne of plan assels
Fqwuted reltn

Conirbmtions by employer
13enefiis naid

Actuanal paini(loss)

Closing faie yalue of plane usscts

Current Portien
Mon - Currenl Patticn

285 308
0.22 423
5.00 012

{0 98) (0 58)
.14 -
7.23 2.85

19.05 34.07

The Company expects 1o contribiie Rs, 213 million to gratwlty in this yea (31 March 2018 Rs 0,34 million)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

= ¥or theyeaconded

March 31, 2019

For-the year ended
Mareh 31, 2018

Investments witl ingurer

100G

IR
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The ceonvmic and ilemographic assumptions used in determining gratuity ebligations for the Company's plaos arc shown helow:
For the year eniled  For Ihe veur cnded

Mareh 31, 2019 March 310, 2018

Disgoint rale 7T 7704
Expected rate of retirn on assets T.70% 7. 70%
Fapected mae of sabuy increase Aty 10%,
Retirentent Age (In vears) o0 vears &l years
Erpioyee umover -

- Age uplo 3 years 3t 3.00%

- e 31 - A vears 2 00 20410

- Age above 44 vears Lyia LG
Miprtalily Rale 110 (1604-96) LEC {1 6] 90

Uliimang and bootab Ulimaie auil Kotak

The estinneles of Lk salary increnses, considered i aetvaris) valusanon, take sccount ol inflatton, scriordy. promation and ather relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in he cimployment markel,

The overall expected rate of telum on assets b dewmnned Based or the market prices provailing on that date. applicable 10 the period over which ihe
obhgation is to be settlod.

The knpact of sensilivity analysis due to changes in the signilicant actuarial assumplions o the defined Benefit obligations is ghven in below

lable:
Change in Tor the year ended  For the year ended
assumptions March 31, 2019 March 3, 2018
T7iseoum rate V1% 2327 32,00
- 1% 2079 43,14
Expeeled rate of satary increase + 1% 29.65 42,62
- 1% 2330 nn

The senseqvity analyses above have been deicrmmned based on a method that extrapoiates the impact on defined benefit obliganon as a resull of reasonable
¢hanges in kev assumptions occurring at the end ol the reporting period

The following paymenis are expected contributions ta the defimed Tenefit plin in futuse vears:

Far the yenrended  For the year ended

iarch 31, 2019 barch 31, 2008
Year | 213 .54
Year 2 152 242
Yeur 3 .62 (.51
Year 1 127 0.62
Year 3 .86 1 56
Year 610 10 9.35 872

The average duration of (i defined benefit plan obligation a the end of the reporting period is [8.76 years (31 March 2018 19015 years).

fhes sprce oy heen viteatonalfy left blunk)
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31 Liases
Orpernting fease: company as lessee

The Company lwrs taken premises for otfice and stmage vse nnder eancellable and npn—cancelfalle cpaatne lease aureements The toral loase nasaly recuanied s m expensye
dunng e yrn under 1he sy Jeise agrocinents anpresates e Rs 2632 mellion (March 31, 2018 s 26 61 million) There are nasesinetions inposed by the lease urevmnents

Purther sutiinmem sents]_paysble under non-cancellabhe npatating hease ane as follows {1, In_million}
31 March 2019 31 Marcle 2018

Within ene wear - -

After one year b not more 1han frvg years - -

Adier five years R )

32 Heluted party disclosure

n. Npmies of relnied par
Related parties where coniral exists
tolding, Cugrany S Chand And Cumpany Linmed

ies aand related party relntionship

Relaied parties with whom teansactiuns have Wakes pluee doring 1he yuar
el subsrliprics Blackie & Son (Cabeutin} Private Linnted
New Saraswai MHouse (India) Private Linates]
BM { bidee) Fovvate Lumited
Mg Pabihishers & Prntery Provae ooied
Sl Mhgital Edecnhon Iniganses Posate | onieed
135 Mneita! Povate Lamed
5 Chand Lateeh Prsate D irngled
Lrasia Pubhshing Howse BFrvate Laimuted
Chhaya Biakashan ovate Limvted

Enterpse over which KM or ther Hotel Tounst
tediloves vnereese st wluence SC Hwel Tourist Deloxe Private Limmled
Key Manageencnt Persennet Mr Hemomsher Gepla Dicector

Mr Dowsh Kumar Jhunplineeala, Brrector

Mr, Gaurse Kumar Jwnyhnueala, Whnle- Time Darscter

Mes Sevata Gupta, Whole- Lime Dhrecier

M Peep Wsiira, Direaigr iuil 03 Nevermber 208

Mh Bl Clhimedrisshebae

Ms Aschiuna Cupoar

Mr Sargos Goiral (e e d Tram 02 Movember 2005 till 03 March, ZUEY)

s e e boor atoniiomity fefi blaak)
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F2.b Related pasty transactions

Tlae $ablew g Lo s

s e tetad g of s ons i lave een entered inig witl ielated parnes for the relevand financeml vear

IRs. In million |

. . Frigrprises ywavd ar . . n
Year Encled é::]::fy S\llts:inllli:‘riu signilicantly influepced by l\c}P:‘rlmll;:z:‘ml Foial
KATP or their redatives
Sale af Camts fpnblisling aad Printing) Serviees
B Chand A Canipany Limned 31 March 2019 334 30 - - - F24 5
M hlargh 2018 48713 - - 487,13
§ fiund Fdutecl Paate Lol 31 ATarcl 2614 - 176 - - 276
A March 2018 - - - - -
Fevwe Surawwat Hoose i Prosate Domiied 3 Mach 2017 134 45 - - 134 45
A1 larch 2018 - 147 8% - - 147 55
BB Tnduy Pecatg 1] 31 Narch 2014 - RN - L]
3] Meele 2073 - LR - Gl
Safan el Fdueation ratsatse Prvite Lamitwd 7 Mlgoch 20y - BT - 5440
Mfreh 21 - R - - 25 ut
Pona Pubshishers & Pomvas Moscae U imnged 31 Masch 200 L5 ol [F)
31 Mocch 2018 - il - Bl
Chhins: Praksshani Provate Linned B Mlaegh 2009 el 3 o4 35
W N laogh 2018 | 50 - - | 59
Safe al paper
S Chand And Copary [imited 31 March 2rie - - - .
31 Nlarch 2015 1083 - 1032
Muw Saraswati Howse lndia Provage Timited 31 March 2004 . - - - -
A Mareh 2608 - 5584 - - 5 5
Chhagy Makasdins Povte Lisnted I March 2019 N T4 36 - - 430
A1 March 2015 - .38 - [R5
Mgz Pebshghyrs & TPromleas Paoats: | Iineed 31 Mech 20019 - - -
31 Murch 208 20 2N h
Wemmmeration gaid*
Ganray Kumar Miomjhnswala 3 March 2019 - - - 217 $17
3| March 2018 - - - il 0ol
Ravia Canhe 31 Match 2019 - - 518 578
31 Marek 2018 - - - 0l G2
Expenses incurred by ihe eelaced parey on behall of the {vmpany
Reimbursemen of Kepenses 3 dareh 2019 .24 - - .24
31 Mareh 2013 2] - - - nzl
Expenses ineurred by the company on hehaifl of the celated parety -
Reiminnseneat of Expenses 31 March 2019 0.49 B - A%
31 Mnsch 2048 0,05 - - - o3
Purchase of Capital Goods
2 Cliand And Comprany Linnted 31 March 1T - - -
31 Mapch 2008 1215 - - 12,19
Sale ol Capital Gowis! Services
M PFublishers & Proviees PPovate Luted 21 durch 2019 - - - - -
i Aand 018 - 310 - )0
Royally paid
% Chand And Company |.mited 3| March 2019 nat - - - 027
31 March 2018 002 - - L]
BPLEndia) Provate Lomtel 31 Masch Eun - 0315 - 036
b hasch 2018 - L] - - &Y
Purchase ol Paper
5 Chand And Company Lunined 1| March 2019 546 - - - 546
31 March 2018 - - -
New Sazaswan House India Privite Limited E1 Maech 2019 LR - 400
A0 Murele 2018 - - - -
Purchnase of Goods { publishing and Prinling)/ Services
S Chand And Company Limied 3| March 2019 REN:T) - - 24 68
31 Maeh 2018 35 - - - 360
Haotel Tounst 1 Mimch 2019 B - -
31 March 2018 - - 1} 0 - M Ua
Chhaya Prakashani Privale Lumied 3F Murch 2019 - .05 - - Tins
3| Maich 23 - . . -
B¢ Naotel Tourist Dvluxe Prvate Linted 31 March 2019 - 015 013
31 March 2018
Mty Puhlahars £ Pl P Lo — ab-Marohc 2y e P %)
31 Manch 207k - Ol - - (Rl
Safar Dugual Fadweation Posvate Linvted Al ddasch 2004 - w20 - - =20
3| Macch 2318 - 704 - - 7
Entplnyver slock epplion sapenss
5 Chand And Cunspany Limated 3] March 20ty w33 - S 5
30 Mareh 20148 203 - - S
Rent pakd
8 Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2 I - ] S| i<
o i = A Mard = . - .
Interest expense
S Chand And Canpany Limted 3§ March 2012 47 & 5 5 5 43 36
A1 Mageh 2018 4279 - 4270
Dicerior siting fre
har Rasssepalan Chandrazhekas 31 Nhrch 209 - th [0 IR
31 March 2018 - - ol4d [N E]
Ms Aechnna Capoat 31 Mureh 2019 B - - ol LNE]
30 March 2018 - - - L) 905
wr Sanjay Guyral 31 March 2019 - - [t 025
3| Mareh 2008 - - s

“Includig perqurities-pad during the year o year ended March 31, 2019




Vit Pullishing Howse Privaio Limited
Meles to fnnncial Slalemeni as al 3F March 2019
CIN: 735990 LI 27 IPTCOUA 7660

Onitsiaoding Balapces oy al the yiar end:

(R In million}

Luterprises owned or
Year Ended Holding F(,‘"."w, vignilicanily mfoenced by | Key Mlanngerid Tatal
Comphny Snbsidiarics | key I ! Personncl
or (heir rek
Trale Receivables
& Chand And Company Linuied 3 Mlacch 2w 1197 - - - 1697
31 March 2018 194 87 - - 195,67
S Chand Gduiech Private Lamoed 3 Ml 2019 - 291 - FAL
I Alach 20018 - - - - -
Wew Samswalt §lause India Povade Famited 31 Adsch 20| G - 2304 - 23704
31 March 2018 - |58 6 - - 155 05
BE] {Indrat Private Longed 31 Maret: 201 - A 00 - RERE]
41 Maoch 2R - 4l - - 3642
Mg Pulslishers & Prmtens Pervate Lamned 3] Wlaach 2010 - 1964 - 12t
31 March Z00# - i - 2228
Safare Mutal Ldweaton Ieteative Pravate Linited A1 Mforaia 2005 - ER L] - - 710
11 March 2018 & 442 - - 41 24
Chhaya Prakasham Povate Limited I vLoch 200 - 793 - - 793
i1 Aasch 212 17t o7l
Losn veceived aad payuiedd thereol :
& Claad And Company Lunined
1.on taken 30 March 2w B .
31 Marel 2018 <Alafy 142 - - Aaf 00
Loan repaymen 31 hdareh 200 150 - - 1 &40
31 Mncch 018 Sl - - AL
Empluyee regefvahle
Mrs Savila Gupa FE Arch 2004 - e 218
31 March Z01% 3 - - -
Interest payalily
5 Cliand And Company Lmited 13 March 2004 5 - - - N
31 March 28 38,51 - - 3R 51




Yilas Publisbiog Havse Private Limiled
Noles to financial siatement as at 3 March 2019
CIN: VTR LTI T UDS T 66

33 Capital & other commitments
{Rs. In milliga)
warch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Relating 1o the purchases ol machinery and office cquipmem 25 .
Lelating to Expart Prosnotion Capital Goods cammitanl Gefer noie 383 2239 T 8%
34 Drennils of dues 16 micre, small and mediunt calerprises i defined under the MSMED Acw 2006
{Rs. [n million}

Marel 31, 20019 March 31, 2018

The privepa! smowst and the interest due heteon (w be shown sepmately ) renuning unpmd 10 iy suppher as at the end ot
eauit aceouting year

- Irincips] amouwst due 10 imero and snuafl @i ses 25.39 -
- Jnterest due on ghave - R
15.3% -
The amowunt of interest paid by 1he buyer in tenms of sechon 16 of the MSNMED Act 2006 along willn 1he amounts of the - -
payment 1ade 1o e suppiier beyvord e eppowted day durtng, sech avcoming: year
The amowni el mtgest Que and pavahle for e period of delay o msabang payiem (which bave been pand but beyood the - -
appomted day during 1Ei y eany but witho adihing the interest specificd vnder the MSMILY Aet 2006
[T amonnt of failier imtercst remaming due ard pay able gven i ithe sueceeding vears. winl such date when Ui fnterest dues - -

a5 ithgve are aetually praid to the snall entergnise lor the prepese of disallowance as a deducnble expenditure under section 23
wb il WISMELD Ag 2606

[
W

5 Linhedged fareign cucrency exposure

The mmount of liveign currency expostre A are vol hedped by derivirtive mstrument or otfierwise as on 31 Mareln 2009 and 31 March 2018 nre ay under;

Amount in fergign curreacy {Rs. In niillion)

Foreign currency
March 31,2009 March 31, 20083 Maceh 3, 2019%  Alarch 31, 201877

Trade Receivables LIS} - L3ig . 0.09

Trade Payable GRP 1,350 - 009 -
USLY 8.19,757 - 56,84 .

Bryer Credit LSD - 610133 - 39.69

*Exchonge Rate for 30 March 20010, 1 LS - 2. 6% 32 G131 Hs, 9028
S achange Rate Tor 31 Marghi 2018, 1 1:SD = Rs 65 05

36 Expendilure in foreign ecnrrency {acerual basis)
{Rs. In_million)
Marcl 31,2019 Macch AL, 2018

Rauw matenal b el 3850
Repair & mainietanee - machinens a4z 533
Mreimg & conierence 218 276
ravelling and conveyance 0.77 0.67
Interest on buyer credit 0,49 0.4
Traing expenses 0,26 -
Pubisling expenges 0.09 0.26
68.85 45.13

37 Impoerted and indipenous raw materials copsumed

“Percentape (V) (IR, T ilfion)
Wareh 31, 2009 March 31, 20018 March 31, 2019 March 3t, 2018

Haw Materials

apirted 14,944, 6 02% 1.6
bacenows 5R.06% LERIER 430,78

[
o
o




Vikas Publishing Ulouse Private Limited
MNales (o Tinangal statement 03 at 31 March 2019
CIN: UT4B00DL 1971 PTCH05766

38 Contirgent liabilities

aj There are numerous interprenatve ssues relating 1o the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Turcl dated 28th Februury, 2019 As o matwer of
caulion, the Company has made a provision on a prospective busts from the dae of 1he 5C erduer. The Company will update 1ts provision. on recaiviag
{urther clarty on the subject

b) Daring FY 1819, the Company bas recerved Penalty Order from Income tax authonties under Seetion 271 DA of Income Tax Acl, 1961 requinng the
(Campany to pay Rs, 0.58 million {previous year Rs. Nil) for the gssessment year 2018-19. The Company has paid Rs Nl {previous vear: Rs. Nil) and
has Gled an appeal with CIT{A) contesting the demand.

¢} The Company has export abligation ouistanding as on March 31. 2019 amounting o Ry 22,39 mitlion against which the Company had saved the import
duty of Rs 3.77 millign. 11 view of expiration of period durng ihe year, within which cxport obligation was 1o be fullilled, the Company has applicd lor
extension of export obligation perod with Ditectorate General of Forgign Trade (DCGFT1 The management expects 10 receive (he extension, hence no
adjustment has been made in the Rnancial slatements in this respect.

4% Corporate Social Responsibility (TSI}
{Hz, In million}

Maech 31,2019 dMareh 31,2018
ta) Grosy amount required required W be spent by the Company during the vear 509 402
b} Amount speat during the yvear 506 426

48 Shared service cost
The Halding Company renders vanous administraiive and management services 10 ity subsidiarics companies 10 facilitate its day o day operations
accordingly. the Holding Company has charged INR Rs 21,33 millon (31 March 2018 INR Re NIL} towards such services rendered dunng the year
ended march 31, 2019,

4

Significanl cuslomer
Revenue from one muos customer accownted for amounting to INR 324 50 mithon aggregating 10 179 of total revenus {one major cusiomers amouniing
10 INR 497.94 millign aygrepaling 1o 24% of totul revenue for the vear ended Mareh 3120181,

4

3

F.mgloyce stock compensation expense

In 2012, the ultimale halding company instituled the TSOP Scheme 2012 (the “ESOP 20127 Under the ESOP plan, the-commiliee may grant awsrds of
cquity based stock options beeng Growth options o the emplovees of wlimate holding campany and its subsidiarics As per the Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 102 “Share based payments™. the Company reegiving the sepaces shall measure the services recejved as an equily setiled transacton
and required 1o record compensation cast and diselose mformoiion relatng to the shares granted Lo the emplovees of the Compuany, uader the above Plan

Since. e plan 1= asseesed, mansped and adminisiered by the ulumate holding company. the Company has 1aken sioeh optien cast periains 1o oplions
granied 1o the empleyee of the Company as caleulated by the wllimate holding Company under [nd AS 102,

43 The Sharcholders of Wikas Publishing House Private Limed (transicree) and Rujemlrs Ravindra Ponter Private Limited (ransieron (REPLY, 2
subsidhary of § Chand and Compuny Limited {formerly § Chand and Company Private Limued) ¢8CCL), had approved a scheme of amalgamation (the
seheme) wis 391-394 af the Comparies Act, 1956 and applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 (1o the extent applicable) In accordunce with the
scheme RRPL merged with the Company woed. Ist April. 2014 The Tton'ble Delhi High Count had given uts approval lo the Scheme on February 18,
2016 and order was received by 1he company on April 7, 2016 The approved scheme was (led with the Regiarar of Companies an Apitl 27, 2016 and
the Scheme became eliective from such date Assets and habilities. righis and ebligdtion of the RRPL were transferned into the Company (as provaded in
the Scheme)

During FY 2012-13, Rapendra Ravindra Priming Private Limited "Amalgamating Company™ had sold its cenain fand and builtding {scquired in 1972) 10
its whollv ownud subsidiary, smd cltimed exempiion undor section 47(1v) of [Income Tax Act, 1981 {“Act™) However, by vaiue of merger of RRPL, the
subsidiary company ceasés 10 be whelly owned subsidiary of RRPL before expiry of' & yoars from the date of transfer, accordingly, eapital pains ¢lamed
2% exempl under section 47{0v). would now be taxable tn the year of transfer due to wivger of section 47A, Considering this, tax liabilily for Rs 33 51
million has been recoenised in the books of"aceounts. The company has filed an application with the departiment.

L
e
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Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to finaneial statement as at 31 March 2019
CIN: U74899DL19T1PTCUS764

#3 Financial Instruments:- Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company”s principal linancial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, irade and other payabies. The main purpose ofl these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include investiments in equily
shares and govermment scourities. advances to related party. trade and other receivables, sceurity deposits, cash and shor-term
deposits that derive direetly from its operations.

The Company is cxposed lo market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees Lhe
management of these risks and advises on Mnancial risks and the approprigte linancial risk governance framework for the
Company. The bourd provides assurance to the shareholders that the Company’s financial risk activities are poverned by
appropriate policies and proecedures and that linancial risks are identified. measured and managed in aceordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing cach of these risks,
which are summarised below.

A. Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value ol futurg cash (tows ol a financial instrement will Nuctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comsprises three types of risk:-
a.) Interest raie risk.
1.) curreney risk and other price risk, such as cquity price risk and
<.y commodity risk,
Financial instruments affected by markel risk inciude loans and borrowings. investments, deposils, advances and derivative
financial instraments,

The sensitivily analyses in the following scetions relale to the position as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on (he basis that the amount of net debL. the ratio of floating 10 fixed interest rates of
the debtl and derivatives and the proportion of [inancial instruments in forelgn currencies are all constant in place at 31 March
2019,

The analyses exclude e impact of movements in markel variables on: the carrying values of gratuily and other posi-retirement
obligations: provisions. The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market
risks.

a. Interest rale risl.
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or [uture cash Rows ol 2 financial instrument will Nuctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market intercst rates relates primarily lo the Company’s
leng-term debt obligations with Hixed interest rates.

The iollowing (able demonsirates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates. With all other variables held
constant. the Company’s profit before wax is affected through the impact on lloating rate borrowings, as follows:

{Rs. In million)

Increasce/decrease in - Effcet on profit before Lifeet on cquity

basis points tax (0ChH
As at March 36, 2018
INR Borrowings 4+.5% (479} -
-0.5% 4,79 -
As al March 31,2019
INR Borrowings t0.5% - G4 0 -
—— . T 5% 3,94 -
I X



Yikas Pablishing [{ouse Privaic Limited
Notes 1o financial statement as at 31 March 2019
CIN: U74899D L1971 PTCO05766

h.

Foreign eurrency risk

lFForeign currency risk is the risk thut the fair vaiue or finure cash (lows ol an exposure will flectuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in (oreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s
operating activitics {when revenue or expense i3 denominated in a foreign currency) and financing activitics { when loan is
denominated in a foreign currency).

The company has done [00% hedging its forgign currency exposure againgt (inancing aclivities, hence sensitivity analysis is not
required tor [inancing activitics., in which Company has forcign exposure.

‘The company does not hedge its foreign currency exposure (or operating activilies, however the seasitivity analysis is given as
below for the for the currencies. in which Company bas foreipn exposure:
{Rs. ln miltion)

Changes in foreign  Cifect or profit before Effect on equity

currency rates tax (OCDH
For the year ended March 31, 2018
Ush +5% 1.99 -
-5% {1.99) -
For the year ended March 31, 2019
LISD +5% 2.34 -
-3% {2.84) -

{This space has been intentionally left blunk)




Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes 1o linancial seatement as al 31 March 2019
CIN: UFdRYID LTI TCRST 06

[k Credit Risk
Credit sk 1s the rish that counterparty will mol megt s obhgations under a Ainanciab insttument or custorner conteact, leading 19 o finuncial loss. The
Company is not eaposed to any signuteant eredit tisk from oy operating activiues (primardy trade receivables), including deposits with banks and
financial instionoens, loreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments

The Ageng analysis-of trade receivables (net) 25 of the reporting date 1s as follows:
{Rs. In million}

Age Bracket Not Due (205 Days | 206-365 Days | 365730 Days | 1OT¢ than 730 Total
Days

Asal 31 March 2018 1.41060.12 55 99 38233 - 29 74 1.567.18

As ak 31 March 2019 1.084 83 9111 202,00 1557 45.68 1.449.19

C. Liquidity Risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the ohhgations asseciated with its Mnancial habilities that gre wettled by
delivering cash or anotiwr Nnancial asset. The Compony’s objeetive is to mainiain » bulance bolween coninuity of findiag and Nexiblity throegh the use
of bank overdeaits, and hank [vuns The company's appeoach to manusgig figuidity o cnsure | as far as possible, that it will have safficient hgmdity 1o
meel s liability when they ore due, wnder both normal and stressed conditions. withoul incurnng unacceplible losses o nsking damage 0 the
Company's reputation The Company elosely moenitors 1ts liquidity position and deploys i robust cash mansgement svstem. The Company manages
liquidity sk by matntaining adequaie reserves, borrowing liallines. by continuously monitoring forecast and acwal cash flows. profile of financial
assels and liabitilics. Il mamam adequie sources of linancing mcluding loans [rom banhs ut an optimised cost. The wable below prowides the deiails

regarding contraclual inaturities of financial liahdlitres.
{Rs. ka million)

Ag at Ay at

Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

On Demand
- Borrowings 3549.82 199,41
359,82 199.61

Less than T year

- Borrowings ROL0OG 27069
- Tradue payables 614,87 453 39
- Crihier Tinancad habulities 211,55 113 U6

906.42 846.14

Maore than 1 year
- Othet financeal liahilies 323,78 447,95
313.78 44795

46 Capital managemens

For the purpose af the Company’s copital management capital imclades issued equity capial and all other equnty feserves atinbutable (o the equiy
holders of the company, The primary obyective of the Company s capital management is (o maximise the shaccholder value.

The Company seeks 1o maimiain a balance botween the higher retumns that might be possible with higher fevels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capnial position, The primary objective of the company's capiiul managetnent s o musmmise the shaccholder vabue

The Company monitors capitai using a gearing ratio, which 15 net debt divided hw total capital plus nel debt. The Company's policy s to kecp the gearing
ratio between 30% 10 50%. The Company measures underlying net debt as wt habilities, comprising interest beardng loun: and bortowmg:  »xcluding
any dues w subsidiaries or group companies less cash und.e ™ guivale & 7 il we e Lt

ety e e premim s R Ve Ak oo




Vikas Publishing House Privale Limited
Notes 0 financinl statement as a1 31 March 2019
LN UT4899D L1971 e T OO T66

Company's adjusted nel debi Lo equity ratio as al 31 March 2019 is as Tollow: (Hs. In million)

As al As i

Gearlng Ratio 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018

Borrowings (Mote 11A & 11B) 763 60 927.23
L.ess, cash and cash eyuivalenis {Note 5D} 202 56) [112.55)
Adjusted ret debt (A) S6F, 04 814,70
Lquity 152232 1444 32
Total equity {B} 1.522.32 1,444.52
Toral enuily and nel debs | = {A+B)| 2.083.36 2,259.22
Gearing Ratio (AAC) RGEYEUH 36.06%

in order 10 acheve this overall objective. the Company’s capital management, amangst ether (hings. aims Lo ensore that 1t meets linancial covenants
attached to the wmicrest-beanng Ioans and borrowings that deline coprlal Struciure veguireinents. Breaches in meeung the financial covenants would
peraut the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. Refer note LEA for bresch in the Thancial covenamis of 1nterest bearing loans and borowings
in the currenl period.

Ne changes were made e the abjeciives. policies of processes for managing capital duning ihe years ended 31 Marct 2009 and 31 March 2018,

{lhee spraee B Beer mfontiobind (v doft blenk)
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Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Noles to financial statementas at 31 March 2019
CIN: UT4E99D 1971 PTCO0ST66

48 Major comporents of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 are as follows:

Profit or loss section {Rs. In million}

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Current income (ax

Current income tax charge 2822 112,16
Adjustment of axes for carlier years (190} -
Deferred tax

Relating (o orrpination and reversal of timing ditferences 21 80 6.13
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 48.12 118.31
07T sertion {Rs. En millian)

31 Maech 2019 30 Murch 2018

Deferred tax relaied to nems recognised in QCI durirg the vear
Net lossi guind on remeasurement of defined benelme plan {592) 1.94

Ineome tax charged 1w OC1 {590 1.94

Reconcthation of tax expense and the accounting profic mulliplied by luda’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.
{Rs. En million}

For the year ended  For the year cnded
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Accounting profit before tax 17 I6d.46
Al Tndiy's statutory income tax rate of 24 (2% (31 March 2018, 34.608%) 3237 12613
Nan deductible expenses for tax purposes 1.40 422
Permanent dilference net considered for deferred taxes &2l (8.2
Others 7 44 (3.8}
Ad the effective income tax rate of 43 30% (31 March 20187 32.46%) 48.12 118.31
Incane tux cxpense reporled in the statemen of profit and loss 48,12 118,31

4% Duning the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company experenced signifieant sales return which was more than the management estimales
made during year ended March 31, 2018,

50 Naturc and purpese of reserves

General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Acet 1956, peneral reserve was created through 2o anngal transter of net income al g specified percentage in
accordance with applicable regulations The purpose of these ransters was to ensure that iz dividend distribution i a given year is more than
1% of the pard-up vapital of the Company for that year, then the total dividend distribution s iess than the total distributable results (or that
year. Consequent o ntroduction of Companies At 2013 the requurement o maskatorily tansfer 3 specified percentage of the net profit 1o
peteral reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously transferred 1o the general reserve cun be utilised only in accordance with
the spectfic requirements of Companies Act, 201 3,

Revaluation_reserye
e Company has tecognised revaluation reserve on revaluation of land and bulding

Deemed capital contribution
Decmed capital contrbubion represents Employee stock opiion (ESOP) cost allocated by the parent Company for stock oplions 1ssued 1o
cmployees of the Company.




Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Naotes to finaacial statement as at 31 March 2019
CIN: U74899DLIS7IPTCHIST66

31 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassed, where necessary, to conform (o Lhis years olassification.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAT Firm Regisiration Ne. 101049W / E300004
Charered Accountants

per Yogesh Midha
Pariner
Membership No . 94941

Place : New Delht
Dale, 24 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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